
  
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION COMMITTEE OF THE TOWN 
OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE, ARIZONA, HELD ON OCTOBER 21, 2015 IN THE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS.  
Chairman Petersen called the meeting to order at 8:59 a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:   Present   Absent    Present   Absent 
 
Chairman Joe Petersen    X                   Jeffrey McKee      X                      
Vice Chair Rica Girardi                  X        Gil Armijo      X _       _   _        
Lynn Krigbaum      X                 Kathy Dahnk      X          ____       
Vacant - Sunrise                                     Steve Berman      X  _                            
Mayor Smith        _       X _     Diane Tilton  _  X          _                   
  
STAFF PRESENT:  Jill Akins, Assistant to the Town Clerk, Barbara Ashley, Finance Director and Evelyn Racette, 
Town Manager. 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Sam John, Larry John Wright Advertising, Crystal O’Donnell, Director of Pinetop-Lakeside 
Chamber of Commerce, Sheryl Smith and Bill London, Sunrise Ski Park. 
 
ITEM NO. 2, CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  
  
There were no requests from the public to address the Committee at this time. 
 
ITEM NO. 3, CONSENT AGENDA MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING HELD SEPTEMBER 23, 2015: 
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING HELD 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2015.  COMMITTEEMEMBER KRIGBAUM SECONDED THE MOTION AND IT CARRIED 6 TO 1 
WITH COMMITTEEMEMBER BERMAN ABSTAINING.   
 
ITEM NO. 4, REPORT FROM THE BUDGET SUBCOMMITTEE ON THE ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION 
COMMITTEE BUDGET FOR FY 2014-2015: 
 
Chairman Petersen said he had asked Barbara Ashley for coding changes to two line items.  He said the 
Committee was asked to break line items out for the 2014-2015 budget and said he asked for a couple of 
changed.  He said Epic Rides was coded $3,750.00 to local advertising and should be coded to event 
sponsorship, and said the TRACKS maps were coded $2,000.00 to local advertising and should be coded to 
promotional material.  He said promotional material was budgeted $5,000.00 for this fiscal year, and said only 
$2,000.00 had been spent on the TRACKS maps.  He said at this time no money had been spent on trade 
shows, and said there is $5,000 for that line item.  He said there is $5,000.00 available in regional advertising.  
He said this leaves the Committee with money to spend for other items.  He said he is waiting for the final 
number, but said the carry forward could be as much as $24,000.00.   He said this includes the $12,500.00 that 
was set aside for the website.  Barbara Ashley said if items are being coded to the wrong place she suggested 
she would send Chairman Petersen an email when she receives an invoice prior to the finance department 
posting.  Chairman Petersen suggested after legal action is taken he would say where to code the expenditure, 
and said it would then be in the minutes.  Ms. Ashley said she reads the minutes, and said she would be able 
to read the minutes and verify where to post the expenditure.  Chairman Petersen and Ms. Ashley said this 
would work for both of them.  Ms. Ashley said revenue is still higher than expenditures, and said in the 
combined cash account there is $47,680.00.  She said the Committee would see how revenues go during the 
winter months.  She said at this point there is a carry forward for $24,781.00, and said this is an unaudited 



amount.  She said it would be December 2015 before an audited number is received.  She said only $18,573.00 
was budgeted to spend of the carry forward, and said to spend the difference it would have to be taken to 
Council for approval for the expenditure to occur.  She said she would not look to do that until later in the 
fiscal year when the Committee would be able to see how the revenues are coming in.   
 
ITEM NO. 5, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION REGARDING UPDATE BY BOB GATES ON THE 2015 RUN TO THE PINES 
CAR SHOW: 
 
Chairman Petersen said he asked Bob Gates to give the Committee an update of the 2015 Run to the Pines Car 
Show.  He said Mr. Gates is not feeling well and was unable to attend the meeting.  He said Mr. Gates said it 
was a record year, and said it was a very good year.  Chairman Petersen said Mr. Gates would give an update 
at a future meeting.   
 
ITEM NO. 6, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION REGARDING UPDATE ON THE NEW VISITPINETOPLAKESIDE.COM 
WEBSITE: 
 
Committeemember Dahnk said the Requests for Proposals (RFP) would be in the paper on Friday, October 23, 
2015.  She said there would be a pre-bid meeting on Monday, November 9, 2015 at 10:00 a.m. in the 
Executive Room at Town Hall.  She said the bids would be due on November 23, 2015 at 3:00 p.m.  She said 
the bids would be brought to the Advertising and Promotion meeting in December 2015.   
 
ITEM NO. 7, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION REGARDING UPDATE ON THE TOUR OF THE WHITE MOUNTAINS 2015 
ECONOMIC IMPACT: 
 
Chairman Petersen said he invited Todd Sadow to attend the meeting to give an update on the Tour of the 
White Mountains, but said Mr. Sadow is still collecting information on the Tour from Epic Rides.  He said he 
had conversations with hotel and restaurant owners regarding this year’s Tour, and said he and most of the 
owners he talked to are very disappointed in the turnout this year.  He said Mr. Sadow would come to a future 
meeting and give an update.  Chairman Petersen said if the Holiday Inn broke even he would be stretching the 
truth, and said Holiday Inn was one of the Tour’s sponsors.  He said the Holiday Inn did a $1,000.00 in trade, 
and said this meant the Epic Rides staff had free rooms.  He said the riders received a discounted rate. He said 
it is a good event, and said if the hotels, retail and restaurants did well it would be worth the $3,750.00 the 
Advertising and Promotion Committee contributes each year.  Committeemember Krigbaum said there were 
over seven hundred riders at the event.  Chairman Petersen said some riders camped and some stayed in 
cabins.  Committeemember Berman said campers were packed in very tight at the stables, and said he would 
talk to Epic Rides about the camping for next year.  Chairman Petersen said he reached out to other hotels and 
sponsors in Town.  He said the feedback he received from all was this year the Tour’s economic impact was 
different.  He said the rider’s usually camp, but said if they are not impacting the hotels, retail and restaurants 
the contribution would have to be looked at for the next fiscal year.  Ms. Racette said Epic Rides has an 
extensive emailing list, and said the send out numerous emails blasts promoting the sponsors of the event. 
She said the email blasts contain information on the community and the trails.  She said last year Mr. Sadow 
put together an economic impact report, and said he is currently working on the report for the 2015 ride.  
Chairman Petersen said there had been disappointment with business and sponsors, and said the question is if 
the Committee is using our money wisely.  He said the hotels and restaurants track the impact they receive 
when there is an event in Town, and said last year was better than this year.     
 
ITEM NO. 8, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING PURCHASING SIX (6) DAILY SKI PASSES 
FROM SUNRISE SKI RESORT FOR MARKETING GIVEAWAYS THROUGH FACEBOOK: 
 



Chairman Petersen said Sam John would run a Facebook competition to win a pair of daily ski passes.  He said 
Sunrise donated two season passes for grand prizes.  Mr. John said the idea is to make the competition a long 
campaign.  He said in October 2015 two teasers about the contest would be posted, and said on November 4, 
2015 a video announcement would be posted.  He said the video would explain the competition.  He said the 
two grand prizes winners would open the competition up to more people.  He said the video announcement 
would be used on Facebook, and said it would also be used on YouTube, the website and OOTV.  He said the 
first drawing for a pair of daily ski passes would be held on November 9, 2015.  He said additional drawings for 
daily ski passes would be held on November 16 and 23, 2015.  He said the Chamber would also be giving 
restaurant gift cards to the winners.  He said on November 24th and 25th posts would ramp up for the two 
grand prize drawings to be held on November 26, 2105.   
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER KRIGBAUM MOVED TO PURCHASE SIX (6) DAILY SKI PASSES FROM SUNRISE SKI 
RESORT FOR A TOTAL OF $378.00 FOR MARKETING GIVEAWAYS THROUGH FACEBOOK. VICE CHAIRMAN 
GIRARDI (BY PROXY) SECONDED THE MOTION AND IT CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.   
 
Chairman Petersen said the funds would come from seasonal advertising. 
 
ITEM NO. 9, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING REIMBURSEMENT TO MARK CHILTON 
FOR PRESENTING PINETOP-LAKESIDE FOR THE 2016 STATE HOG RALLY: 
 
Chairman Petersen said on October 23 and 24, 2015 Mr. Chilton would be traveling to promote Pinetop-
Lakeside to the Hog Rally committee meeting for holding the 2016 Hog Rally in Town.  He said there are four 
Arizona towns competing for the 2016 rally.  He said the rally has five hundred to seven hundred riders attend.  
He said Hon-Dah and hotels and restaurants in Town are on board to have the rally here in 2016.  He said 
there is a huge opportunity for Pinetop-Lakeside to host the rally due to our location.  He said Mr. Chilton is 
asking for up to three hundred and fifty dollars for reimbursement for travel expenses.    
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER BERMAN MOVED TO SPEND NO MORE THAN $350.00 FOR REIMBURSEMENT TO 
MARK CHILTON.  COMMITTEEMEMBER MC KEE SECONDED THE MOTION AND IT CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.  
 
ITEM NO. 10, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION 
COMMITTEE NOVEMBER 2015 RETREAT: 
 
Chairman Petersen said the Advertising and Promotion Retreat would be held on November 18, 2015. He said 
he would hold the retreat at the Holiday Inn in a conference room, and said the retreat would be held from 
9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m.  He said the regular meeting would start at 9:00 a.m. with the retreat to follow.    
 
ITEM NO. 11, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING RECOMMENDATION TO TOWN 
COUNCIL REGARDING THE RENEWAL OF THE CONTRACT WITH LARRY JOHN WRIGHT ADVERTISING: 
 
Chairman Petersen said he received an email from Leah Chavez, Town Clerk, stating the contract with Larry 
John Wright Advertising would end on November 30, 2015 and said the contract is up for renewal.  He said it 
was a three year renewable contract, and said this is the end of the three year term.  He said requests for 
qualifications would have to be sent out.  He said the Town staff would put together a request for 
qualifications to be posted and sent out.  He said Larry John Wright Advertising would be able to bid for the 
contract along with other agencies.  He said Ms. Chavez is working with the Town Attorney for an extension of 
Mr. John’s contract for the interim.  Ms. Racette said sometimes contracts sneak up on us, and said the 
Council took action on this contract in January 2015 so it had not been a full year since council action.  She said 
it had not been a full year, but said November 30, 2105 would be when the contract would end.  She said the 



Town would put together something to extend the contract so advertising services would not be lost.  She said 
she would like direction from the Committee on the RFQ.  Chairman Petersen said it would be a $90,000.00 
contract, and said this is $30,000.00 per year.  He said this is the amount budgeted for the remaining of the 
fiscal year.  Chairman Petersen said he would work with Town staff on the request for qualifications.  Ms. 
Racette said this is a service contract, and said bids might not have to been done.  She said she does not know 
what took place three years ago, and would check with Ms. Chavez for clarification.  Chairman Petersen said 
he would work with Ms. Racette and Ms. Chavez on the request so it would not be any loss of services.  He 
said Mr. John is already working on future advertising, and said the Committee would want to get this finalized 
as soon as possible.  He said the Committee would not be able to recommend to the Town Council that Larry 
John Wright services be continued.  Ms. Racette said the Committee could recommend to the Town Council to 
extend the contract with Larry John Wright until the RFQ would be completed.   
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK MOVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE TOWN COUNCIL TO EXTEND THE CONTRACT 
WITH LARRY JOHN WRIGHT ON A MONTH TO MONTH BASIS.  COMMITTEEMEMBER KRIGBAUM SECONDED 
THE MOTION AND IT CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
ITEM NO. 12, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING SONORAN LIVING HOLIDAY SPECIAL: 
 
Mr. John said there was success and good response to the Sonoran Living segments the Committee filmed. He 
said he would like to have the entire one hour Sonoran Living show filmed in Pinetop-Lakeside.  He said they 
would also film at Sunrise, businesses and restaurants.  He said it would be similar to the excitement created 
by channel three filming in Town. He said the challenge would be the cost of the show and getting other 
businesses to participate.  Mr. John said he would need help in getting other businesses to participate in the 
show.  Chairman Petersen said if the Committee paid for the entire show then the Committee would be able 
to sell spots to Sunrise, restaurants and businesses in Town. Mr. John said the one hour show would cost 
approximately $7,500.00.  Mr. John said the show would have to be filmed over several days, and said not all 
of the show would be live.  Chairman Petersen said this is a one hour morning show, and said the entire show 
would be dedicated to Pinetop-Lakeside.  Mr. John said he had received a basic proposal from Sonoran Living, 
and said now the show would need additional details.  He said he would like to have the show filmed during 
the peak of the ski season, and said hopefully this would be before Christmas.  He said he would want the 
show filmed as soon as the conditions are optimal, and said the sooner would be better.  He said the show 
would belong to the Committee, and said it would be posted on the website and Facebook.  
Committeemember Krigbaum asked what line item from the budget would it come out of.  
Committeemember Petersen said it would come out of regional advertising or budget carryover.  Mr. John 
said the biggest challenge would be getting other businesses on board in a short amount of time.  He said he 
would be able to break it out into the number of packages there would be and the cost of each package to sell.    
He said the biggest cost of the show would be the travel costs for the film crew and the number of days to 
film.  Mr. John said the proposal part is easy, and said the selling of the segments would be the hard part.  
Committeemember Dahnk said the sale of the show would be easy because of the history of with Sonoran 
Living and other TV during the year.      
 
Sheryl Smith said there were a handful of businesses not included in the channel three show that would like to 
have the opportunity to be included in the Sonoran Living show.  Committeemember Dahnk said it would be a 
buy in to be on the show and not free like the channel three show was.  Mr. John said he would put together a 
proposal to vote on at the next meeting.  More discussion ensured regarding the proposal and the Sonoran 
Living segment.  Mr. John said the viewership of the show is sixty-five percent female over the age of thirty-
five.  Ms. Smith asked if the segments costs would be based on travel time to the site for filming.  Mr. John 
said travel time and costs would be worked into the segment cost, but said each segment would be 
approximately the same amount. Chairman Petersen said the idea is not for the Committee to make money by 



selling segments, but said it would be in helping to facilitate the show being filmed in Town.  
Committeemember McKee said a holiday special including skiing would be a great promotion for the Town.  
Mr. John said a list of five to ten businesses to participate would be great.  Mr. John said Sonoran Living is 
excited about filming the show in Pinetop-Lakeside.  Chairman Petersen asked Ms. Ashley and Ms. Racette the 
legality of selling the segments.  Ms. Ashley said the Town would expend the money, and said partners could 
pay directly to Sonoran Living or they could pay the Town and it would be shown as offsetting revenue.  
Committeemember McKee said a subcommittee should be formed, and said he would volunteer to be on the 
subcommittee. Committeemember Berman said for example if there are five spots to sell, and said in the 
interest of any conflicts, he suggested putting the spots up for bid.  He said the top five bids would get the five 
spots. He said this would take the appearance of impropriety and conflicts away.  Ms. Smith she agreed with 
the idea, but said there would be complaints from small business owners.  She said large businesses would 
have a larger marketing budget.  Committeemember Dahnk said there is time to promote an entire area, and 
said small businesses would be able to group together for a segment.  Mr. John said Sunrise would definitely 
have a spot on the show.  More discussion ensured regarding the segment spots for the show.  Ms. Racette 
said the Committee should make the show their own, and said offsetting or selling segments maybe is not 
necessary. She said the Committee would have to be fair in promoting the Town.  She said to make it 
meaningful to the Committee and the reuse of the video the Committee could pay for the entire show. 
Committeemember Dahnk said it would be difficult to be fair and said not everyone in the entire Town would 
be able to be on the show.  Chairman Petersen asked if a lottery for the spots would be legal to hold.  Ms. 
Racette and Ms. Ashley said they would have to research this question.  Mr. John said he would have all of the 
show details for the November meeting, and said the Committee would be able to vote on the item at the that 
meeting.  Chairman Petersen said Committeemember McKee, Committeemember Berman and 
Committeemember Dahnk would be on the subcommittee.  Chairman Petersen said this would be voted on at 
the November meeting.   
 
ITEM NO. 13, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING PRESENTATION BY KATHY DAHNK FOR 
A POSSIBLE ADVERTISEMENT IN THE ARIZONA OFFICE OF TOURISM VISITORS GUIDE AND WEBSITE: 
 
Committeemember Dahnk said this item was discussed at the last month meeting, and said there are two 
different email advertising programs.  She said she needs to find out more information on each category.  She 
said the Culinary Arizona segment and the Grown Up Fun Summer Concerts and Craft Brews segment are 
interesting.  She said a decision would not be made at this time, but said she would find out information from 
the Office of Tourism.  She said she would have a recommendation for the Committee at the November 
meeting.   
 
 
 
 
ITEM NO. 14, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING UPDATE AND INFORMATION BY SAM 
JOHN OF LARRY JOHN WRIGHT ADVERTISING: 
 
Sam John played a commercial that would be a kick off commercial when the snow arrives.  He gave an 
overview of the website visitors, organic search, OOTV targeted impressions, OOTV full video views, OOTV 
website clicks, OOIA targeted impressions, OOIA website clicks and the Facebook month end likes.  
Committeemember Berman said it would be interesting to see the analytics for October due to the various 
school fall breaks.  He said for him, with the fall breaks over several different weeks, he had been busy in 
October.   Mr. John said future consideration would be advertising during the fall break weeks.  He said there 
is a three week section where schools are on break, and said to consider moving some advertising dollars to 
the end of September through the various October fall breaks. He said in the first part of September Labor Day 



weekend was being promoted, and said after Labor Day the Fall Festival, Cool Running and the car show were 
promoted.  He said during the last two weeks of September the Tour of the White Mountains was promoted.  
He said the first Facebook campaign boosted the likes to seventeen hundred and the second campaign 
boosted the likes to twenty-five hundred.  He said the growth continues to be slow and steady.  Mr. John said 
he recommends for November 2015 to set aside five thousand dollars for OOTV and twenty five hundred 
dollars for OOIA, and said he recommends the same budget for December 2015 contingent on the snow 
conditions.   
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER MC KEE MOVED TO SPEND $7,500.00 ON OOTV AND OOIA FOR NOVEMBER 2015 AND 
$7,500.00 ON OOTV AND OOIA FOR DECEMBER 2015.  COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK SECONDED THE 
MOTION AND IT PASSED 6-1 WITH VICE CHAIRMAN GIRARDI ABSTAINING. 
 
ITEM NO. 15, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION BY THE PINETOP-LAKESIDE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE ON 
FESTIVALS, ACTIVITES, STATISTICS, TRACKING AND TOURISM: 
 
Crystal O’Donnell said the Fall Festival was successful.  She said the Chamber would be holding a customer 
service class on November 9, 2015 from 11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. at the Holiday Inn Express.  She said the cost 
is ten dollars in advance and fifteen dollars at the door and said this includes lunch.  She said Kimber Lanning 
from Local First Arizona is doing a promotion with Hensley beverage and Four Peaks on drink local.  She said 
Hensley is putting together a website with two hundred and fifty grocery stores across the state.  She said is 
you buy specified products you can enter into a drawing to win a weekend getaway to Pinetop-Lakeside, 
Cottonwood or Bisbee.  She said the promotion would run until April 2016.  She said it is only costing her time.  
She said there is a Dutch oven cook-off held every year in Pinedale, and said Pinedale does not want to hold 
the event in 2016.  She said Pinetop-Lakeside would hold the event in August 2016.  She said twelve hundred 
people attend the event.  She said she is hoping to hold the event at the Nature Center.  She said the bumper 
stickers had been ordered.    
 
ITEM NO. 16, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION BY THE TOWN OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE PARKS AND RECREATION 
DEPARTMENT: 
 
Ms. Racette said Trunk or Treat would be held on October 31st from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. at Mountain 
Meadow Park.  She said the tree lighting would be held on December 5, 2015.  She said a local radio station 
would MC the event, and said there would be local talent performing.  She said the third Town Council goal 
was to complete Mountain Meadow Park, and said the fourth goal was to purchase Woodland Lake Park. She 
said the ice skating committee would be holding an event called the Chiller on October 20, 2015.  She said the 
event would be held at the Pinetop Lakes recreation center.  She said there would be food, games and 
activities and said it would be a fundraiser for the ice rink.     
 
ITEM NO 17, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION BY THE ARIZONA GAME AND FISH DEPARTMENT: 
 
Committeemember Tilton said it is quiet this time of year for the Game and Fish Department.  She said the Fall 
Festival was successful, and said over one thousand people visited the live critters.  She said her groups and 
sportsmen were happy with the turn out.   
 
ITEM NO. 18, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION REGARDING TOURISM ACTIVITIES ON TRIBAL LANDS: 
 
Bill London said Sunrise appreciates the advertising help received from the Advertising and Promotion 
Committee.  He said hundreds of thousands of dollars are being spent on chair lifts, and said serious dollars 
are spent things not seen at the resort.  He said the Junior Ski Pass Promotion numbers were down compared 



to last year.  He said extending the promotion to a three day period was more family friendly, and said the 
lines where shorter.  He said the food drive at the promotion provides food to Pinetop-Lakeside and to the 
reservation.  He said Sunrise is still installing snow making pipes and putting lifts back together.  He said he 
attended events in the valley and in Sonora, Mexico to promote Sunrise.  He said Sonora is a great market for 
Sunrise and for Pinetop-Lakeside.  He said Sonoran families bring large groups, have long stays and bring a lot 
of money to spend on their vacations.  He said the zip line tour would be fully operational in the spring of 
2016.  He said the goal is to open the resort on November 21, 2015, if not sooner, depending on the condition 
of the snow.  Committeemember Berman asked how many season passes had been sold at the pre-season 
pricing.  Mr. London said he did not know, but said the season passes are less this year compared to last year.  
He said they would still have the college passes for ninety-nine dollars.   
 
Chairman Petersen said Hon-Dah would try to have a representative attend the next meeting. 
 
  
The meeting adjourned at 10:49 a.m.  
       Advertising and Promotion Committee 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
        Jill Akins, Assistant to the Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


